
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
July 6, 2015 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, July 6, 2015 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
PRESENTATIONS / COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
a. YMCA Quarterly Update by Dexter Larson 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. June 15, 2015 City Council Minutes 
b. City Administrator Compensation 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425.



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
July 6, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Proposed Code Amendments Regarding Newspaper Notices for Land Use Public Hearings 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Questions from Council 
c. Proponents’ Testimony 
d. Opponents’ Testimony 
e. General Testimony 
f. Questions from Public 
g. Questions from Council 
h. Staff Summary 
i. Close of Hearing 
j. Council Deliberation 
k. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 982, Amending the Stayton Municipal Code Title 17, 

Regarding Publishing Notices of Land Use Public Hearings in a Newspaper 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Sign Regulations          Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 

Analysis of Alleys          Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 932, Adopting Fees and Charges for City Services     Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 

 

STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – None  
 

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
 

 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR      
a. Reappointment of Susan Brandt to the PEG Commission 

 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 

 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
July 6, 2015 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – July 20, 2015 
a. Employee & Police Recognition 
b. Pioneer Park Bid Award 
c. Survey Results 
d. Weeds 
e. Annual COLA Increase 
f. CCRLS Contract 
 

ADJOURN 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
July 6, 2015 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

JULY 2015 
Friday July 3 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF INDEPENDENCE DAY 

Monday July 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday July 7 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Friday July 10 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday July 13 City Council Executive Session 5:30 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Tuesday July 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday July 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday July 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday July 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

AUGUST 2015 
Monday August 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday August 4 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday August 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday August 11 Public Safety Commission 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Friday August 14 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday August 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday August 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday August 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

SEPTEMBER 2015 
Tuesday September 1 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday September 7 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF LABOR DAY 

Tuesday September 8 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday September 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Friday September 11 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday September 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday September 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday September 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

OCTOBER 2015 
Monday October 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday October 6 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Friday October 9 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday October 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday October 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday October 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday October 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
 



Santiam Family YMCA 

Pool Update for City Council Meeting 7/06/2015 

2014 Revenue Reporting January-May 2014  
 

TOTAL   $97,024.21 

 

2015 Revenue Reporting January-May 2015  
 
Pool Contributions/FOP Grant   $0  
Daily Pool Pass     $13,044  
Pool Memberships     $17,075 
Pool Rentals     $9,391  
Swim Lessons     $21,746  
City of Stayton Contribution    $27,080  
Swim Team    $9,196 

TOTAL   $97,532 

 

Pool Contributions/FOP Grant: 

As of 2015 the FOP Grant ($4,500 per year) expired. While we did not receive the grant this year, our programing has covered 

the cost. While the total does not initially reflect significant growth, when the FOP Grant is factored out, our YTD 

Membership/Aquatics Program Revenue has increased by $5,008 from 2014 to 2015. (Not including Triathlon Revenue) 

Triathlon Update: 

With 124 participants this year, we were down from 166 in 2014. It is my opinion this is mainly due to the Stayton Sprint 

Triathlon occurring on the same weekend as the “Rock ‘n’ Roll Portland event. Several participants from years past informed us 

that they were going to the Portland event instead, and would have come to the Stayton Sprint Triathlon had it not interfered. 

Due to the lack of participation the NET Profit was $448. As of now it is our plan to change the weekend of the Stayton Sprint 

Triathlon as to not conflict with Rock ‘n’ Roll Portland.   

Swim Lessons 

As of the end of May we have served over 650 Swim Lessons this year. Unlike years past, this summer we continued our regular 

month long swim lesson sessions. This has been well received by the community. Our August swim lessons will end on August 

20th due to the annual pool closure, and will resume in September after we re-open. 

Swim Team 

For the first time in many years, the Stayton Manta Ray swim team is thriving. With 42 swimmers and growing, this has become 

a very successful program, which competes at a recreational level, as well as a USA Competitive Level. It is our goal to have 50 

regular participants by the end of September.   

 

Submitted By: 
Dexter Larson 
Branch Director 
dlarson@theYonline.org 
 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 2 
July 6, 2015 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

June 15, 2015 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:09 P.M.     Time End:  9:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell (excused) Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Katinka Bryk, Library Director (excused) 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Brian Quigley Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
 Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 David Rhoten, City Attorney (excused) 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
None 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Dan Morgan 

 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Cari Sessums 
 
 
c. Dave Curran 

 
Mr. Morgan inquired about the status of the Stop 
Work Order in Phillips Estates, as well as concerns 
about alleys. Mr. Campbell will update when the 
arbitration is finalized and alleys will be on an 
upcoming Council agenda. 
 
Ms. Sessums spoke about the 5:1 ratio in the sign 
code and offered a revision suggestion.  
 
Mr. Curran presented the Council with a revised 
proposal for freestanding signs.  

Consent Agenda 
a. June 1, 2015 City Council Minutes 
b. Senior Services Meal Site Agreement Renewal 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to approve the Consent Agenda 
as modified. Motion passed 4:0. 

Public Hearing None. 
Unfinished Business 
Sign Code 
a. Discussion continued from previous meetings 

 
 
Continued discussion and review of the sign code.  
 
Mr. Fleishman will produce a draft with the 
Council’s suggested changes and return with them 
at the July 6 Council meeting. If the Council 
approves the draft, it will move forward to a public 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 2 
July 6, 2015 

hearing at the July 27 City Council meeting. 
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to lift the moratorium on 
enforcement of the sign code. Motion passed 3:1 
(Niegel). 

New Business None. 
Staff / Commission Reports 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer 
a. May 2015 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens 
a. May 2015 Statistical Report 
 
 
Public Works Director’s Report 
a. May 2015 Operating Report 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. May 2015 Activities Report 
 
 
Library Director’s Report – Katinka Bryk 
a. May 2015 Activities  

 
 
No further discussion. 
 
 
Chief Sebens spoke about the recent crosswalk 
and seat belt enforcement. 
 
 
No further discussion. 
 
 
Mr. Fleishman gave a brief review of his staff 
report.  
 
 
No further discussion.  

Presentations / Comments From the Public None.  
Business from the City Administrator None. 
Business from the Mayor 
a. Reappointment of Margaret Ables to the Library Board 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to ratify the Mayor’s 
reappointment of Margaret Ables to the Library 
Board. Motion passed 4:0.  

Business from the Council None.  
Future Agenda Items – July 6, 2015 
a. Fee Schedule Resolution 
b. Weeds 
c. Annual COLA Increase 
d. Land Use Public Hearing – Newspaper Notices 
e. Alleys 
f. CCRLS Contract 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF JULY 2015, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
    

Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 







 
Public hearing staff report, Ord 982  Page 1 of 2  
July 6, 2015 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry A Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: July 6, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Proposed Code Amendments regarding 
Newspaper Notices for Land Use Public Hearings 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on proposed legislative text amendments to 
the Stayton Land Use and Development Code, Title 17, Chapter 17.20 regarding the 
requirement to publish a notice in a newspaper for public hearings on applications for approval 
under the Land Use and Development Code. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Stayton Municipal Code Section 17.12.060.4 requires that notices of land use public hearings be 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City at least 10 days prior to the public 
hearing. This is in addition to the notice that is sent to the owners of all property within 300 
feet of the subject property, posting a sign on the property, posting notice at the City Hall, 
Community Center and Library, and posting on the City’s web site.  While mailing a notice to 
owners of neighboring property is a requirement of state law, there is no statutory requirement 
to publish a notice in a newspaper.  The average cost of a newspaper notice is about $300, 
which is passed on to the applicant. 

The proposed amendment removes the requirement for a newspaper notice, but continues to 
require all other methods of notification. 

It should be noted that the revised fee scheduled presented to the City Council for approval on 
the same evening assumes that the requirement for a notice in the newspaper will be removed.  
Staff is proposing that the fees for most land use applications be reduced by $300. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission has recommended that the City Council enact the amendment as 
presented.  Their Order is attached.  Staff recommends the City Council enact Ordinance 982 as 
presented. 



 
Public hearing staff report, Ord 982  Page 2 of 2  
July 6, 2015 
 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 982 

Move to approve Ordinance No 982 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present 
and their vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is 
unanimous, Ordinance No. 982 is enacted and will be presented to the 
Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 982 will be brought before the 
Council for a second consideration at the July 20, 2015 meeting. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 982 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present 
and their vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first 
consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 982 will be brought before the 
Council for a second consideration at its July 20, 2015 meeting. 

3. Retain the Code unchanged  

No motion is necessary. 

 







 

Ordinance No. 982 Amending Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Title 17, Regarding Publishing Notices Of Land Use 
Public Hearings In A Newspaper Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 982 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

(SMC) TITLE 17, REGARDING PUBLISHING NOTICES OF 
LAND USE PUBLIC HEARINGS IN A NEWSPAPER 

 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS), Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and 
implement a comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning 
goals and guidelines established by the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and 
Development Commission; 

WHEREAS, ORS 197.763 further contains requirements for notification for land use public 
hearings, but does not require publication of a notice in a newspaper; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code as the Land 
Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC 17.12.060 specifies the requirements for notice of public hearings required by 
the Land Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC 17.12.060.2 requires notice of a hearing be mailed to all owners of property 
within 300 feet of the subject property, compared to the 100-foot requirement of state law; 

WHEREAS, SMC 17.12.060.3 requires notice of a hearing be posted on the subject property; 

WHEREAS, SMC 17.12.060.4 requires notice of a hearing be published in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the City (“the community”); 

WHEREAS, the cost of a newspaper notice averages $275 and that cost is passed on to the 
applicant; 

WHEREAS, circulation of the local newspaper has declined in the community; 

WHEREAS, in addition to the notifications required by the SMC 17.12.060, it is the practice of 
the City to post notices of public hearings on the windows of City Hall, at the Stayton Public 
Library, and at the Stayton Community Center as well as on the City’s website, and by email to 
those have signed up to receive such emails; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land 
Use and Development Code in regards to the necessity of publishing notices of public hearings 
in a newspaper and has recommended this SMC amendment; and, 
WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the SMC 
amendments proposed by the Stayton Planning Commission are appropriate and that adequate 
public notice of hearings will continue to be provided. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 12 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 
12, Section 17.12.060.4 is hereby amended as follows: 

4. In addition, notice of each public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation not later than 10 days prior to the public hearing, except in the case of for 
an application for annexations, where notice of each public hearing shall be published 



 

Ordinance No. 982 Amending Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Title 17, Regarding Publishing Notices Of Land Use 
Public Hearings In A Newspaper Page 2 of 2 

in a newspaper of general circulation in the community once each week for two 
successive weeks prior to the day of the public hearing. 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 
Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 3.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of 
Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 6th day of July, 2015.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2015 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2015 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: July 6, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Sign Regulations 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is continued discussion regarding sign regulations in the 
Stayton Land Use and Development Code. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

At the June 15 meeting, the City Council completed its review at Section 17.20.140.9.b.2. 

You should review the attached to make sure that I properly captured the changes the Council 
wanted.  This is also your opportunity to suggest any other changes to your fellow councilors. 

Once the Council finalizes its review, the proposed changes will be forwarded to the Planning 
Commission for a public hearing.  They will then return to the City Council for a second public 
hearing and consideration of adoption. 

 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

1 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptAdditions are underlined; deletions are crossed out 
 
17.04.100 DEFINITIONS 
MURAL:  An illustration (with or without words or numbers) which is painted or otherwise 
applied (without projections) directly to an outside wall of a structure or by means of flat panels 
that do not project from the walls. 
 
17.20.140 SIGNS 

1. PURPOSE. The purposes of these sign regulations are to provide equitable signage 
rights; reduce signage conflicts; promote traffic and pedestrian safety; and increase the 
aesthetic value and economic viability of the city by classifying and regulating the 
location, size, type, and number of signs and related matters. 

2. PERMIT PROCEDURES. 

a. Permit Required.  No person shall construct or alter any sign without first obtaining a 
permit from the City Planner. 

b. Current Signs.  Owners of conforming or nonconforming signs existing as of the 
January 10, 1999 shall not be required to obtain a sign permit. 

c. Application Requirements. 

1) An application for a sign permit shall be submitted on a form prescribed by the 
City. 

1) Within 7 days of submittal the City Planner shall determine whether the 
application is complete. 

2) Within 14 days of submission of a complete application, the City Planner shall 
either: approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application. 

3) The decision shall be issued in writing. 
2) Sign permits mistakenly issued in violation of these regulations or other 

provisions of the Code are void.  The Stayton City Administrator may revoke a 
sign permit if it is found that material errors or misstatements of fact were made 
by the applicant on the permit application. 

3) The sign permit does not take the place of any required buildingother (e.g. 
structural, mechanical, electrical) permits (e.g. structural, mechanical, electrical) 
which may be required to construct or locate an approved sign. 

d. Permit Fees.  Permit fees shall be established by City Council resolution. 

e. Construction and Maintenance.  All signs shall be designed, constructed, and 
maintained in accordance with the following standards: 

1) All signs shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Oregon Structural 
Specialty Code in effect at the time of the sign permit application and all other 
applicable structural, electrical, and other regulations.  Issuance of a sign permit 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 14 pt,
Bold

Formatted: No page break before



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

2 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptunder these regulations does not relieve the applicant of complying with all other 
permit requirements. 

2) Except for temporary signs, signs shall be constructed of durable materials and be 
firmly attached to the ground, to a building, or to another structure by direct 
attachment to a rigid wall, frame, or structure. 

3) All signs shall be maintained in a good structural condition and be readable at all 
times. Sign supports shall be plumb.  Broken faces of signs shall be repaired 
within 45 days of the date of damage.  Failed illumination shall be replaced or 
repaired within 45 days of the date of failure of the lighting fixture or wiring 
defect.  Sign supports shall be removed within one year of the removal of a sign.  
The provisions of this section shall apply to all signs within the City, including 
those not meeting these standards on the effective date of this provision. 

3. SIGNS GENERALLY PERMITTED. Subject to the limitations listed in this subsection, 
the following signs and sign erection or alterations are permitted in all zones.  These 
signs shall not require a permit and shall not be included when determining compliance 
with total allowed area: 

a. Painting or otherwise changing the sign face or copy, and maintenance of legally 
existing signs.  If structural changes are made, the sign shall conform in all respects to 
these regulations. 

b. Signs not exceeding 32 square feet which advertise the sale, rental, or lease of the 
premises upon which the sign is located. 

c. Signs posted by or under governmental authority, including legal notices, traffic, 
danger, no trespassing, emergency, and signs related to public services or safety. 

d. One sign, not to exceed 32 square feet, at each street entrance of a residential 
development or subdivision. 

e. Incidental signs not exceeding 6 square feet. 

f. Official national, state, and local government flags and a National League of 
Families’ POW/MIA flag on permanent flag poles designed to allow the raising and 
lowering of flags: 

1) One flag or bannerpole per property is exempt from the provisions of these 
regulations. 

2) In a residential zone, a flag structure shall not exceed 35 feet.  

3) In a Commercial, Industrial or Downtown zone, a flag structure shall not exceed 
35 feet or 110 percent of the maximum height of the primary structure on the 
property, whichever is greater.  

4) All structures over 10 feet in height supporting flags require a Building Permit 
and an inspection(s) of the footing and structure, as per the building code, prior to 
installation of the structure. 

g. Signs within a building that are not visible from the street, sidewalk or other public 
property. 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

3 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pth. Signs painted or hung on the inside of a window or door. that do not exceed 30% of 
the window or door area. This area limit shall not apply to neon signs. 

i. Commercial murals shall count as a sign in determining total sign area for a business. 
Murals that do not advertise or identify a business, with a cultural or heritage theme, 
are not considered commercial signs and are exempt from this ordinanceSection. 

j. Name signs, not exceeding 2 square feet, identifying the occupants of a dwelling. 

k. Restoration, repair, or replacement of signs that have been demonstrated by the owner 
to have been in existence since January 1, 1949, provided the sign substantially 
retains its original appearance and location. 

l. Temporary and portable signs, no larger than 16 square feet in area, announcing 
community events.  Banners hung with the guy wires located on 1st First Avenue 
between Cedar and Regis Streets, are permitted for up to four weeks in advance of the 
event and shall be removed within 5 days of the end of the event.  Banners shall be no 
larger than 80 square feet in area.  

4. PROHIBITED SIGNS. The following signs shall be prohibited: 

a. Balloons or similar tethered objects. 

b. Roof signs. 

c. Signs emitting an odor, visible matter, or sound. 

d. Signs supported by guy wires of any type except for the guy wires located on 1st First 
Avenue between Cedar and Regis Streets. 

e. Signs that obstruct a fire escape, required exit, window, or door opening used as a 
means of egress. 

f. Signs closer than 24 inches horizontally or vertically from any overhead power line or 
public utility guy wire. 

g. Rotating/revolving signs. 

h. Flashing signs, except as allowed by conditional use permit under the regulations of 
this sign code. 

i. Signs that project into or over driveways or public rights-of-way, except signs under a 
canopy that projects over a public sidewalk.  Such sign shall not be less than eight 
feet above the ground. 

j. Signs within the sight clearance triangle that obstruct the required vision areas or 
represent a hazard to pedestrian or vehicle traffic. 

k. Signs that interfere with, imitate, or resemble any official traffic control sign, signal, 
or device; emergency lights; or which appear to direct traffic (e.g., a beacon light). 

l. Signs attached to any pole, post, utility pole, or placed by its own stake in the ground 
in a public right-of-way.  This restriction shall not apply to bulletin boards for public 
use as authorized by the City Council. 

m. Message signs, except by conditional use permit. 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

4 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptn. Any new or relocated off-premise sign, unless specifically allowed as a permitted 
sign in this sign code. 

o. No vehicle or trailer shall be parked for an extended period of time more than 72 
hours so as to be visible from a public right-of-way which has attached thereto or 
located thereon any sign or advertising device for the basic purpose of providing 
advertisement of products or directing people to a business or activity located on the 
same or another premises, unless such sign meets the requirements of this section.  
This provision applies only to a vehicle the primary purpose of which is 
advertisement; it is not intended to prohibit any form of sign attached to or on a 
vehicle the primary use of which is for business purposes other than advertising. 

p. Signs on city property placed by a nongovernmental entity. 

q. Free standing and illuminated signs for all home occupations. 

5. ILLUMINATION OF SIGNS 

a. No sign shall be comprised of or illuminated by intermittent light except digital 
public service messages signs, such as time, date, temperature, etc. 

b. Externally Illuminated Signs 

1) The average level of illumination on the vertical surface of the sign shall not 
exceed 3.0 foot-candles, and the uniformity ratio (the ratio of average to minimum 
illumination) shall not exceed 2:1. 

2) Lighting fixtures illuminating signs shall be carefully located, aimed, and hooded 
or shielded to prevent direct illumination of public streets or abutting properties. 

3) Light fixtures illuminating signs shall be of a type such that the light source (bulb) 
is not directly visible from adjacent public streets or properties. 

4) To the extent practicable, fixtures used to illuminate signs shall be top mounted 
and directed downward (i.e. below the horizontal). 

c. Internally Illuminated Signs. 

1) Internally lit signs are permitted only in the commercial, and industrial, public, 
and downtown zones. 

In order to prevent internally illuminated signs from becoming light fixtures, such 
signs shall consist of light lettering or symbols on a dark background.  The 
lightness or darkness is a function of the luminous transmittance of the translucent 
surface material, and the light source.  The higher the luminous transmittance, the 
lighter the color. 

2) The lettering or symbols shall constitute no more than 40% of the surface area of 
the sign. 

3) The luminous transmittance for the lettering or symbols shall not exceed 35%. 

4) The luminous transmittance for the background portion of the sign shall not 
exceed 15%. 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

5 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt5) Light sources shall be fluorescent tubes, spaced at least 12 inches on center, 
mounted at least 3.5 inches from the translucent surface material. 

6) The standards of this subsection shall not apply to gas-filled tubing exposed to 
view (neon signs). 

6. NONCONFORMING SIGNS. 

a. Alteration of Nonconforming Sign Faces. Legally existing nonconforming signs are 
subject to the following provision regarding alteration. 

1) A change in sign face alone is allowed without requiring compliance with these 
regulations. 

2) When a nonconforming sign face is damaged or destroyed, such sign face may be 
restored to its original condition provided such work is completed within sixty 
days of the damage.  However, a sign structure or support mechanism so damaged 
shall not be replaced except in conformance with the provisions of these 
regulations. 

b. Permits for Properties with Nonconforming Signs. 

1) [repealed Ord. 924] 

2) [repealed Ord. 924] 

3) Nonconforming Sign Area.  All signs in existence as of the date of the permit 
application shall be included in the total allowed area, number, or size when 
reviewing applications for new or altered signs to be allowed on the property. 

c. Abatement of Nonconforming Signs. 

1) All permanent, free-standing signs, and wall, canopy, projecting or other similar 
permanent signs in existence on the effective date of these regulations, which are 
not in conformance with the provisions of these regulations may be repaired,  or 
maintained (including a change in sign face) until such time the sign structure is 
altered, at which time the sign must conform to applicable sign regulations. 

2) [repealed Ord. 924] 

3) [repealed Ord. 924] 

4) Existing permanent free-standing signs on properties annexed to the city shall be 
in conformance with the provisions of these regulations within one year following 
annexation.  Temporary signs shall conform to the regulations within 6 months 
following annexation.  

d. Abandoned Signs.  All signs for a business shall be removed within 30 days after that 
business ceases to operate on a regular basis, and the entire sign structure shall be 
removed within one year of such cessation of operation.  The sign structure shall be 
maintained in accordance with Section 17.20.140.2.e.3). 

7. SIGNS IN THE PUBLIC/SEMI-PUBLIC ZONE. The following regulations apply to 
signs in the Public/Semi-public zone: 

Formatted: Keep with next



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

6 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pta. Sign Types.  Any combination of wall, canopy, projecting, free-standing, and window 
signsThe following sign types are allowed: 

1) Wall, canopy, projecting, free-standing, and window signs. 

2) Temporary displays consisting of any sign type for a period not to exceed 21 days 
in any 365 day period.  Owners or parties responsible for such displays shall be 
considered responsible for any public or private nuisance. 

b.a. Any combination of wall, canopy, or free-standing sign not exceeding the sign area 
and height limitations set forth below shall be allowed. 

c.b. Total signage area on a property shall not exceed 64 square feet. 

d.c. Maximum Sign Height. 

1) Wall or wall mounted signs shall not project above the parapet or roof eaves. 

2) A monument sign shall not exceed 6 feet in height.  Any other free-standing sign 
shall not exceed a total height of 6 feet within the first 10 feet of a property 
boundary; otherwise, the maximum height is 16 feet. 

e.d. Permitted Locations. 

1) Wall, canopy or projecting signsA wall sign may project into the required setback 
no more than 1.5 feet from the building. 

1)2) A canopy or projection sign may project up to 3 feet from the building, 
and may project into a street right-of-way. However, any portion of a canopy or 
projecting sign that projects over a street right-of-way shall be at least 8 feet 
above ground level. 

2)3) A free-standing sign shall be setback at least 5 feet from any property line. 

f. Home occupations are subject to this rule and the provisions of Stayton Municipal 
Code governing home occupations. 

8. SIGNS IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES.  Other than signs permitted under Section 
17.020.140.3, signs in the Residential zones are limited to signs for home occupations.  
Home occupation signs are subject to the provisions of Section 17.020.100.10. 

9. SIGNS IN COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL ZONES. The following regulations 
shall apply to signs commercial and industrial zones: 

a. Signs for businesses not in integrated business centers: 

1) Total Allowed Area.  The total allowed sign area of all signs for a business not in 
an integrated business center is two square feet of for each lineal foot of building 
frontage up to a maximum of 100 square feet. 

2) Type, Maximum Number, and Size of Signs.  Within the total allowed signage 
area, one free-standing sign for each street frontage, and one wall, canopy or 
projecting signs is permitted.  A free-standing sign shall be limited to a maximum 
of 50% of the total allowed sign area. 

3) Maximum Sign Height. 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

7 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt1) Wall or wall mounted signs shall not project above the parapet or roof eaves. 

2) A monument sign shall not exceed 6 feet in height.  Any other free-standing 
sign shall not exceed a total height of 6 feet within the first 10 feet of a 
property boundary; otherwise, the maximum height is 16 feet. 

4) Location. 

1) Wall or canopy signs may project up to 1.5 feet from the building. 

2) Projecting signs may project up to 3 feet from the building, and may project 
into a street right-of-way. However, any portion of a canopy or projecting sign 
that projects over a street right-of-way shall be at least 8 feet above ground 
level. 

3) Monument signs shall not project over street rights-of-way and they shall not 
be located within a sight clearance triangle or special street setback.  Other 
free-standing signs shall be setback a minimum of 5 feet from any property 
line.  Any sign located within a sight clearance triangle shall either be no taller 
than 3 feet in height or have the lowest portion of the sign at least 8 feet in 
height. 

b. Signs for integrated business centers. 

1) Total Allowed Area. 

a) Signs attached to a building for an individual business within an integrated 
business center shall be no larger than one square foot of sign area for each 
lineal foot of building frontage for the individual business, up to a maximum 
of 80 square feet per business.  If a building is located more than 50 feet from 
the front lot line, the maximum sign area may be increased by 50%.  If a 
building is located more than 100 feet from the front lot line, the maximum 
sign area may be increased by 100%.  Individual businesses may not assign 
their unused allowed area to other businesses in the integrated business center. 

b) Integrated business center.  One free-standing sign is permitted for each street 
on which an integrated business center has frontage.  If there is only one street 
frontage, the sign shall not exceed 150 square feet in area; otherwise, the 
maximum sign area for each sign shall be 100 square feet. 

c) Businesses that are located in an individual building within the integrated 
business center may have one freestanding sign in addition to the free standing 
sign for the center.  The sign shall be no larger than 40 square feet in sign 
area, no taller than 8 feet above ground, and shall be located within 30 feet of 
the building in which the business is located. 

2) Maximum Sign Height. 

1) Wall or wall mounted signs shall not project above the parapet or roof eaves. 

2) A monument sign shall not exceed 6 feet in height.  Any other free-standing 
sign shall not exceed a total height of 6 feet within the first 10 feet of a 
property boundary; otherwise, the maximum height is 16 feet. 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

8 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt3) Location. 

1) Wall or canopy signs may project up to 1.5 feet from the building. 

2) Projection Projecting signs may project up to 3 feet from the building, and 
may project into a street right-of-way. However, any portion of a projecting 
sign that projects over a street right-of-way shall be at least 8 feet above 
ground level. 

3) Monument signs shall not project over street right-of-way and they shall not 
be located within a sight clearance triangle or special street setbacks. 

4) Other free-standing signs shall be setback a minimum of 5 feet from any 
property line.  Any sign located within a sight clearance triangle shall either 
be no taller than 3 feet in height or have the lowest portion of the sign at least 
8 feet in height. 

c. Additional Signs.  Within the limitation of this subsection, the types of signs 
discussed in this subsection do not require a permit and are not included in 
calculations for allowed area and number of signs: 

1) When a business has two public entrances on separate building walls, there is 
permitted one additional wall sign not to exceed 10 square feet in area for the wall 
where the entrance is not the primary entrance. 

2) Directional signs (e.g., “Exit” or “Entrance”) are allowed either as wall or free-
standing signs.  Each such sign shall be limited to three square feet in area and 
there shall be no more than two signs per driveway.  Free-standing directional 
signs shall be limited to a height of 4 feet. 

3) Order signs describing products and/or order instructions to a customer (e.g., 
menu boards at a drive-through restaurant) shall be limited to 40 square feet in 
area and a maximum height of 8 feet.  Any order sign greater than 10 square feet 
in area and/or 6 feet in height must be screened from adjacent streets by a sight 
obscuring fence, wall, or hedge in accordance with Section 17.20.090. 

d. Signs for Temporary Businesses.  Temporary businesses may display temporary or 
portable signs other than trailer-mounted reader boards or any other sign that includes 
flashing or rotating lights or moving parts.  The cumulative size of all such signs may 
not exceed 32 square feet.  No individual sign shall be larger than 16 square feet.  All 
temporary signs must be placed within ten feet of the structure or vehicle used for the 
temporary business and may not be placed within any public right-of-way. 

9-A. SIGNS IN THE DOWNTOWN ZONES.  The following regulations shall apply to 
signs in the Downtown Zones. 

a. Sign Types and Maximum Number of Signs.  Within the CCMU, DCMU, and 
DRMU zones, the following sign types are allowed: 

1) In the CCMU Zone, any combination of wall, canopy, projecting, and window 
signs is permitted not exceeding the sign area limitations.  In the DRMU Zone in 
addition to any combination of wall, canopy, projecting and window signs, one 
free-standing sign for each street on which the lot fronts may be erected between a 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Tab stops:
Not at  1.25"



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

9 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptbuilding and the front lot line provided the building is at least 20 feet from the 
front lot line.  

2) Sidewalk signs in conformance with Section 17.20.140.9-A.e. below.  

b. Number of Signs.  Each business may have one wall, canopy or projecting sign 
attached to a building for each side of the building facing a street or public 
sidewalk the business occupies, not including awning signs.  

c. Total Allowed Area.  The total allowed sign area for any wall, canopy or 
projecting signs for a business in the CCMU, DCMU, or DRMU zones is one 
square foot of sign area per lineal foot of building frontage for the individual 
business, up to a maximum of 30 square feet.  The maximum sign area for any 
free-standing sign in the DRMU zone is 30 square feet.  

d. Maximum Sign Height.  Wall or wall-mounted signs shall not be taller than 20 
feet and shall not project above the parapet or roof eaves. A free-standing sign 
shall not exceed 12 feet in height. 

e. Location.   

1) Wall or canopy signs may project up to 1.5 feet from the building.  

2) Projection signs may project up to 4 3 feet from the building.  Any portion of 
a projection sign that projects over a street right-of-way shall not be less than 
8 feet above the ground level.  

3) Free-standing signs shall be setback a minimum of 5 feet from any property 
line.  Any sign located within a sight clearance triangle shall either be no taller 
than 3 feet in height or have the lowest portion of the sign at least 8 feet in 
height.  

f. Sidewalk Signs.  Any business located in the CCMU, DCMU, or DRMU zone 
may have one sign erected on the public sidewalk in conformance with the 
following standards. 

 i. A sidewalk sign shall be either an A-frame sandwich sign or be a hanging sign 
supported by a metal frame inserted into a hole the sidewalk provided by the 
City.  

 ii. The sign shall be entirely outside of the area of a right-of-way corner that is 
between the curb and the lines created by extending the property line to the 
curb face.  See Figure 17.20.140.9-A.1  

 iii. A sidewalk sign shall be placed either within six inches of the curb line or 
within 2 feet of the front lot line, in order to minimize interference with 
pedestrians.  In either location, the sign shall not obstruct a continuous 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

10 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptthrough pedestrian zone of at least six feet in width.  See Figure 17.20.140.9-
A.2 

 iv. The maximum sign area of a sandwich sign shall be 6 square feet, counting 
only one side of the sandwich sign.  The maximum sign area of a hanging sign 
shall be 4 square feet.  

 v. A sidewalk sign may be erected only during the hours a business is open. 

 vi. A sidewalk sign shall not be illuminated. 

9-B. TEMPORARY AND PORTABLE SIGNS. 

a. Temporary Signs.  No more than two temporary signs per business shall be 
permitted at any one time.  Temporary signs shall conform to the following: 

1) A temporary sign shall not exceed 16 square feet in area. 

2) The placement of temporary signs shall be limited to a period not exceeding 
90 days within any calendar year.  This restriction applies to the display of all 
temporary signs throughout a calendar year and not to each individual sign. 

3) A temporary sign shall not be located within the public right-of-way or violate 
vision clearance provisions. 

4) A newly opened business may have a temporary sign for up to 180 days while 
waiting for a permanent sign to be manufactured and installed. 

b. Portable Signs.  No more than one portable sign per business shall be permitted at 
any one time.  Portable signs shall conform to the following: 

1) Except for public safety, all trailer-mounted reader boards shall be prohibited. 

2) The maximum permitted area shall be 12 square feet per display surface. 

3) The maximum height shall be four feet above ground level. 

4) Except in the Downtown Zones, portable signs for businesses not within an 
integrated business center shall be located on the property on which the 
business is located.  Portable signs within an integrated business center shall 
be located between the building and parking area and immediately in front of 
the business. 

5) In the Downtown Zones a portable sign may be erected on the public sidewalk 
in conformance with the following standards 

a) The portable sign shall be either an A-frame sandwich sign or be a 
hanging sign supported by a metal frame inserted into a hole the sidewalk 
provided by the City.  

b) The portable sign shall be entirely outside of the area of a right-of-way 
corner that is between the curb and the lines created by extending the 
property line to the curb face.  See Figure 17.20.140.9-A.1  

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.75" + Tab
after:  1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 4 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after: 
1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" +
Indent at:  0.75", Tab stops:  1.5", Left + Not at
 -1"



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

11 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptc) A portable sign shall be placed either within six inches of the curb line or 
within 2 feet of the front lot line, in order to minimize interference with 
pedestrians.  In either location, the sign shall not obstruct a continuous 
through pedestrian zone of at least six feet in width.  See Figure 
17.20.140.9-A.2. 

d) The maximum sign area of an A-frame sandwich sign shall be 6 square 
feet, counting only one side of the sign.  The maximum sign area of a 
hanging sign shall be 4 square feet.  

e) A portable sign may be erected only during the hours a business is open. 

1)6) A portable sign shall not be illuminated. 

e.c. Signs for Temporary Businesses.  Temporary businesses may display temporary 
or portable signs other than trailer-mounted reader boards or any other sign that 
includes flashing or rotating lights or moving parts.  The cumulative size of all 
such signs may not exceed 32 square feet.  No individual sign shall be larger than 
16 square feet.  All temporary signs must be placed within ten feet of the structure 
or vehicle used for the temporary business and may not be placed within any 
public right-of-way. 

10. CONDITIONAL USE PERMITSELECTRONIC MESSAGE SIGNS. Applications for 
conditional use permits for message signs shall be reviewed processed according to 
procedures set forth in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code.  The criteria to be 
reviewed and applied in conditional use permit proceedings are set forth in this section:  

a. Proposed sign is located in a Public, Commercial, or Industrial zone.  

b. Proposed sign, when conditioned, will not significantly increase street level sign 
clutter or adversely dominate the visual image of the area. 

c. Proposed sign, as conditioned, will not adversely impact the surrounding area to a 
significant degree. 

d. Proposed sign will not represent a traffic or safety hazard. 

e. The following standards shall apply. 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.75" + Tab
after:  1" + Indent at:  1"



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

12 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt1) With the exception of a message sign that displays only the time or temperature, 
the message or display may be changed no more than once every minute10 
seconds.  

2) The message or display must change as rapidly as technologically practicable, 
with no phasing, rolling, scrolling, flashing or blending. 

3) The message or display may consist only of alphabetic or numeric text of a 
uniform color on a plain background of uniform color and may not include any 
graphic, pictorial or photographic images.  

4) The electronic display may comprise no more than 50% of the surface area of a 
message sign. 

5) No more than one changeable message sign with 2 sides is allowed per lot. 

6) [Repealed Ord. 978] 

7) The luminance of the sign shall be limited to no more than 280 candelas per 
square meter.  The applicant shall submit information from the sign manufacturer 
indicating the luminance will be met as measured with a luminance meter aperture 
of 1 degree or less, 50 feet directly in front of the sign with the sign in a fully 
illuminated mode.  If the message sign displays white or multi-colored light, the 
luminance shall be measured in of white light.  

8) The sign shall default to the off position in the case of any failure of mechanisms 
that control luminance or other display features.  

f. Except for a message sign dedicated to announcing only community events and 
public service messages, the total allowed sign area for an establishment shall be 
reduced by 25% if the establishment has a message sign.  

g. The pProposed sign shall comply with all other regulations including, but not limited 
to, height and placement restrictions. 

h. The provisions of Section 17.20.140.4.n notwithstanding, a message sign dedicated to 
announcing only community events and public service messages may also display the 
name or logos of businesses, provided that the portion of the sign identifying the 
businesses is not more than 25% of the total sign area and the business names or 
logos are not part of the electronic message portion of the sign.  

11. VARIANCES. Any deviation from the standards set forth in these regulations shall be by 
variance.  No variance shall be approved without affirmative findings that the request 
fully satisfies the following criteria: 

a. There are unique circumstances of or conditions of the lot, building, or traffic pattern 
such that the existing sign regulations create an undue hardship. 

b. Granting of the variance compensates for those circumstances in a manner equitable 
with other property owners and is not a special privilege to any business.  Any 
variance granted shall be the minimum necessary to compensate for those conditions 
and achieve the purpose of this chapter. 



 Proposed Amendments to the Sign Regulations in the Stayton Land Use and Development Code 
 For City Council Review, July 6, 2015 

13 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 ptc. Granting of the variance shall not decrease traffic safety nor detrimentally affect any 
other identified public welfare considerations. 

d. Granting a variance shall not result in a special advertising advantage in relation to 
neighboring businesses or businesses of a similar nature.  Desire to match standard 
sign sizes (e.g., chain store signs) shall not be considered as a reason for a variance. 

e. The need for a variance shall not be the result of condition created by the applicant or 
a previous owner. 

f. The variance must be consistent with the purposes of this section. 

12. [Repealed, Ord. 898] 
 



 
Alley Vacation and Encroachment  Page 1 of 4  
July 6, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: July 6, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Analysis of Alleys 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is whether any alleys should be vacated and whether to take any 
action regarding private encroachments into alleys.  The City Council last discussed this issue on May 
18, 2015. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The May staff report presented information to the City Council regarding a number of City alleys that 
play no role in the City’s transportation system and have no public or private utilities located within 
them.  Staff had suggested that the City could vacate these alleys without the loss of any public 
benefit, since they were not being used by the public.  Further, staff had identified alleys that had 
been encroached upon with buildings, fences or landscaping by neighboring property owners.  Staff 
recommended the City contact abutting property owners to make sure they were aware they had 
encroached on the public right of way, but not ordering removal of the encroachment.  Following a 
discussion, the City Council requested that staff take no action on either the issue of vacating unused 
alleys or private encroachments into the alleys. 

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS 

There were a number of issues and questions raised during and following the City Council discussion 
in May.  In addition, staff contacted City-County Insurance Services to seek their advice regarding the 
extent of the City’s liability. 

One of the issues raised during the City Council discussion was the impact of alley vacation on a 
property owner’s assessed valuation and taxes.  Staff has reviewed Marion County Assessor’s data for 
a number of similar lots in blocks with alleys and blocks in which the City has previously vacated 
alleys.  There is no impact on the Assessor’s Real Market Value of the land.  The figure below shows 
the six blocks between Elwood and Hollister Streets and Third and Sixth Avenues.  Three blocks still 
have an alley.  In one block the alley has been vacated.  In one block, half the alley has been vacated. 
The assessor’s land value for each lot is shown.  As you can see, with two exceptions the Marion 
County Assessor estimates the value of a house lot in this area as $55,000, regardless of the size or 
shape of the lot and regardless of the presence of an alley. 



 
Alley Vacation and Encroachment  Page 2 of 4  
July 6, 2015 

Figure 1.  Marion County Assessor’s Real Market Value, Land Only 

 
Therefore, staff concludes that vacating alleys will not have a property tax impact on neighboring 
property owners and will not have a property tax revenue benefit to the City or other taxing 
jurisdictions. 

Another issue raised was what happens if a neighboring property owner does not want the additional 
property.  At this point, staff is merely recommending that the City Council initiate the vacation 
process.  As the process plays out, the City Council will hold a public hearing and staff will provide 
written notice to all affected property owners of the hearing.  Property owners will have the 
opportunity to attend the hearing and let the Council know their concerns and desires.  Based on the 
testimony at the hearing, the City Council could choose not to vacate a particular alley or could 
choose to vacate only a portion of an alley, as was done in the block between Robidoux and Hollister 
Streets and Third and Fourth Avenues, illustrated above.  If the City Council chooses to vacate an 
alley, the alley reverts to the abutting property owners, regardless of whether the neighboring owner 
wants the additional property or not. 

Finally, the issue of the City’s liability if someone is injured in an alley was raised at the May meeting.  
City staff has posed this question to City County Insurance Services, our insurance carrier.  Adrian 
Albrich, a Loss Prevention Specialist at CIS provided this response in a May 20 email: 

 
Since the property is technically owned by the city, the city can be held liable as a result of any 
hazards or injuries occurring on the property or a failure to maintain the property. If the city 
has no intentions to ever use the property, CIS would strongly recommend transferring 



 
Alley Vacation and Encroachment  Page 3 of 4  
July 6, 2015 

ownership of the property evenly among adjacent property owners to abate this potential 
liability. The Council, city's attorney and city planners can assist with this property transfer. 
  
Another option the city may consider for the properties that they do intend to use, would be 
to write to the adjacent property owners, a letter stating that the property does in fact belong 
to the city, and in the future intends to reclaim the property, but will allow the adjacent 
property owner to continue to use the city property if they will indemnify the city of any and 
all claims and liability and agree to vacate the property when it is time for the city to move 
forward in its intended use. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Alleys proposed for Vacation 

The alleys that staff recommends be vacated are: 

• 1-2 Alley, between Pine & Fir 
• 1-2 Alley, between Fir & Cedar 
• 2-3 Alley, between Fir & Cedar 
• 3-4 Alley, between Burnett & Virginia 
• 3-4 Alley, north of Robidoux 
• 4-5 Alley, south of Marion 
• 4-5 Alley, between Robidoux & Hollister 
• 4-5 Alley, between Jefferson & Santiam 
• 5-6 Alley, between Burnett & Virginia 
• 6-7 Alley, between Burnett & Virginia 
• 6-7 Alley, between Virginia & Washington 
• 6-7 Alley, between Washington & Jefferson 
• 1-Alder Alley, North of High 
• Alder-Cherry Alley, North of High 
• Douglas-Evergreen Alley South of Water 

If the Council agrees that these alleys should be vacated, staff will return with a resolution initiating 
the process.  Notice will be sent to abutting property owners, as required by state statute and a 
public hearing will be held by the Planning Commission.  Notice will also be sent to the private 
utilities, though they have previously been consulted. The Planning Commission’s recommendation 
will come to the City Council, who must also hold a public hearing.  This will provide any affected 
property owners two opportunities to express their concerns.  Final action will be in the form of an 
ordinance presented to the City Council for adoption. 

Alley Encroachments 

Staff has identified 15 alleys with one or more encroachments.  Five of the alleys with encroachments 
do not have any utility facilities located within them, and are included in the list of alleys to be 
vacated.  For those alleys not proposed for vacation, staff recommends a letter be sent to the 
neighboring property owner informing them of the encroachment, allowing the encroachment to 
remain provided the property owner agrees to indemnify the City from liability, but also stating that 
at any time in the future the City might require the encroachment to be removed. 



 
Alley Vacation and Encroachment  Page 4 of 4  
July 6, 2015 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council has a number of options, which are not mutually exclusive.  The City Council could: 

1. Request staff return with resolution initiating vacation of the identified alleys 

Move the City Council request staff return to the July 20 meeting with a draft resolution initiating 
the vacation process for the 15 alleys identified above. 

2. Direct staff to send letters to property owners informing them they are encroaching on public 
property and that the City may, in the future, require them to remove their encroachment.   

Move the City Council direct staff to inform property owners that they are encroaching on public 
property allowing the encroachment to remain provided the property owner agrees to indemnify 
the City from liability, but also stating that at any time in the future the City might require the 
encroachment to be removed. 

3. Take no action.  

No motion necessary 












































